
 
 
 
March 3, 2009 
 
The Honorable Neil M. Barofsky 
Special Inspector General  
Office of the Special Inspector General 
Troubled Asset Relief Program 
1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 1064 
Washington, D.C. 20220 
 
Dear Mr. Barofsky: 
 
We are responding to your February 6, 2009 request for information on how 
Valley National Bancorp invested the proceeds of the U.S. Treasury’s investment 
in $300 million in Senior Preferred Stock on November 14, 2008, and how Valley 
has complied with the executive compensation requirements associated with 
Treasury’s investment.  We are very pleased to report that Treasury’s investment 
in Valley has achieved the government’s stated objective of bolstering the bank’s 
ability to invest in the local, regional, and national economy.  The additional 
capital supported our ability to make loans and investments, which might not 
have been made otherwise, to creditworthy individuals and small to medium-
sized businesses. 
 
When Valley agreed to Treasury’s investment in the fixed rate, cumulative 
perpetual senior preferred shares, the company and its subsidiary, Valley 
National Bank, had more than sufficient capital to be regarded by the regulators 
as well-capitalized.  Like a large number of community and mid-sized banks, we 
did not engage in any sub-prime mortgage or high-risk lending or investment 
programs such as negative amortization mortgages and credit default swaps.  
Our conservative lending approach to residential, consumer, and commercial 
lending has remained the same over many years with strong emphases on the 
documented ability to repay and protective loan-to-value ratios, as well as 
recourse to business owners.   
 
The stability and strength of our loan portfolio and our overall financial position 
meant that we were not in need of additional capital.  Like many other well-
capitalized banks, we elected to participate in the program as an insurance policy 
against a prolonged and deep recession.  We also believed the added capital 
would give us a greater opportunity to grow through acquisitions or by serving the 
credit needs of new customers whose previous providers were no longer able to 
meet their needs.  At the same time, the capital would support our meeting the 
continuing credit needs of existing customers.   
 
In response to your specific questions, and as noted above, Valley: 



• Planned to use the added capital to fund and provide support to new 
lending and investments.   

• Valley added the preferred capital dollars with other sources of cash 
available to Valley.   

• Between September 2008 and January 2009, the monthly volume of home 
loan applications grew by more than eight times to well over 650 
applications. 

• Between November 14, 2008 and January 31, 2009, Valley leveraged the 
Treasury’s investment by purchasing $521 million in home mortgage-
backed securities issued by the Government National Mortgage 
Association, and by funding (or committing to fund) loans totaling more 
than $1 billion, as follows: 

 
1. more than $32 million in new and refinanced home mortgage loans, 
2. $22 million in new Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit,  
3. more than $23 million in new automobile loans, 
4. more than $435 million new business and commercial mortgage loan 

commitments, funding almost $300 million, 
5. more than $510 million business and commercial mortgage loan 

renewals, funding more than $265 million. 
 

Of note, nearly $60 million of the originated business loans were community-
development, economic-development, and small business loans.  In addition, at 
January 31, we were evaluating another 870 credit applications for more than 
$190 million in new and refinance home loans, more than 10 times the volume of 
applications in September 2008. 
 
We invested or loaned through January 31 more than 500% of the amount of 
Treasury’s investment.  We continue to seek new business opportunities for 
additional investment and loans to credit-worthy customers.  However, the 
prolonged and sharp contraction in the economy of our market area makes our 
customers more cautious about taking on additional debt and more anxious 
about existing borrowings.  The troubled economy and worrisome outlook 
translates to fewer new credit applications and greater reduction in outstanding 
loans.   
 
In November 2008, each of our “Named Executive Officers” (NEOs) including the 
Chief Executive Officer formally accepted the compensation standards that were 
specified in the Capital Purchase Program (CPP).  Our NEOs have agreed to 
forego all "golden parachute" payments as defined as long as they remain senior 
executive officers and Treasury continues to hold our equity securities.  Our 
NEOs also agreed to the “clawback” provision of the CPP.   
 
In addition, Valley’s independent Compensation Committee discussed NEO 
incentives with our Chief Risk Officer in November 2008 and concluded that 
there was no unwarranted connection between loan or other risks and executive 
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compensation.  Nevertheless, the Committee decided to revise the Long Term 
Stock Incentive Compensation Program to reduce the possible incentive to take 
additional risk inherent in such a program.  The revision requires at least 50% of 
shares whose vesting accelerates in connection with employment termination 
other than death or disability, must be retained for a minimum period of at least 
18 months in the case of retirement, and 24 months for any other reason.  The 
Committee believed that such a deferral beyond their term of employment 
encourages executives to remain focused on our long-term goals.  Finally, Valley 
will not be allowed to take federal income tax deductions for compensation to a 
senior executive officer in excess of $500,000 per year as long as the Treasury 
maintains its investment in Valley. 
 
As you requested, we are enclosing several documents, which illustrate the 
efforts we have made, including: 
 

1. News Release dated November 14, 2008 announcing Treasury’s 
investment and Valley’s belief that the funds will enhance our long-term 
commitment to serve our market and customers, as well as assist in 
Treasury’s efforts to stabilize the U.S. economy. 

2. A portion of our January 22, 2009 earnings release, including the 
Chairman’s Comments on pages 2 and 3, which discuss our use of the 
Treasury’s investment. 

3. Text of the Analysts Conference Call held January 23, 2009, which 
includes the Chairman’s comments on pages 6 and 7 about the use of 
TARP proceeds.  

4. Newspaper advertisement published in January 2009 communicating 
Valley’s ability and desire to lend to credit-worthy borrowers. 

5. Newspaper ad about a special home mortgage refinance program for a 
fixed and simplified fee. 

6. A screen shot of our webpage advertising the availability of low rate home 
mortgages.  And,  

7. Texts of our telephone announcements communicating the availability of 
home mortgage loans at historically low rates. 

 
We trust you will find this responsive to your request for information.  As 
requested, I certify that I reviewed this response and supporting information and 
that this response does not contain any untrue fact or material omission. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Alan D. Eskow 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Valley National Bancorp 
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cc: VIA Email to SIGTARP.response@do.treas.gov 




































